
 1 

BURRILLVILLE REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
MEETING MINUTES 

 
Meeting Place:  Jesse M. Smith Library, Community Room 
Meeting Date:  July 23, 2013 
Meeting Time:  7:00 PM 
 
Members Present: 

James Langlois, Chairman  Mark Thompson, Alternate Member 
Edward Bonczek  
David Fontaine   

 
Members Absent: 

Jeffrey J. Barr, Vice Chairman Royal Laurent 
 
Staff/Consultants Present: 

Michael C. Wood, Secretary Scott A. Gibbs, NEEDS, Inc. 
Timothy F. Kane, General Legal Counsel  

 
Others: 

  
 
Call To Order: 
James Langlois called the regularly scheduled meeting of the Agency to order at 7:05 PM. James Langlois 
requested that the minutes note that Jeffrey Barr and Royal Laurent have been excused for the meeting, and 
Mark Thompson will be a voting member for the meeting.  
 
Approval of Minutes: 
Approval of minutes of the June 25, 2013 Regular Meeting, and to dispense with the reading of said minutes. 
Edward Bonczek made a motion to approve the minutes of the June 25, 2013 Regular Meeting.  Mark 
Thompson seconded the motion and the vote in favor was unanimous. 
 
 
Invoices: 
Discussion, consideration and action relative to the invoice from Farrell Signs for the “Stillwater Mill 
Center” sign. 
Mark Thompson made a motion to approve payment of the invoice from Farrell Signs dated 7/17/13 in the 
amount of $2,100.  David Fontaine seconded the motion and the vote in favor was unanimous. 
 
Citizens Comment: 
None 
 
Consultants Staff Report: 
Discussion, consideration and action relative to the Financial Report including Budgets and Audits. 
Fontaine stated that the Financial Report reflected a preliminary year-end report, projecting $165,000 of 
available funds to carry into next year.  Fontaine stated that the preliminary report indicated that Agency 
revenues and expenses were roughly equal for the year.  James Langlois made a motion to receive and file 
the Financial Report. Edward Bonczek seconded the motion and the vote in favor was unanimous. 
 
Old Business: 
Discussion, consideration and action relative to the Stillwater Mill Redevelopment District. 
 
A. Update on Signage Improvements 



 2 

Langlois stated that after consultation with Backgrounds by Maheu and various tenants in the Stillwater Mill 
Redevelopment District, letter design and color parameters have been developed for company ladder signs. 
Langlois referenced a letter and order form that will be mailed to business owners.  Langlois indicated that 
they already have four commitments.   Kravitz stated that the signs would be put up on Route 102 this week.  
Wood affirmed that the signs would be installed on Thursday.  Wood stated that the Town will install the 
canoe/kayak sign at Freedom Park this week. 
 
B. RIPTA Bus Schedule 
Wood explained that ridership has been extremely low.  As a means to enhance ridership, the Farmer’s 
Market will start a PR campaign and RIPTA will put a sign on the bus.  Wood outlined new event dates after 
which the RIPTA bus service will stop. 
 
C. Upgrade for Stillwater Park 
Wood explained that Jeff and Tom met with RIDEM regarding proposed playground and park 
improvements.  As explained by Wood, additional testing and mitigation steps will be required totaling 
$14,000 of estimated costs. Jeff proposed that they just cap the site, which Mike believes will not be 
acceptable to RIDEM. Wood stated that unless RIDEM accepts the cap approach, they would have no other 
option but do the testing. 
 
Discussion, consideration and action relative to the Geo-Tourism Project: 
Wood stated that he has nothing new regarding this agenda item. 
 
Discussion, consideration and action relative to the Clock Tower Project 
Wood stated that he has nothing new regarding this agenda item. 
 
Discussion, consideration and action relative to the Downtown Pascoag Project. 
A. Update regarding Blackstone River Valley NeighborWorks project 
Wood suggested that the Redevelopment Agency consider the new bridge over the river in anticipation of 
Joe Garlick’s proposed project.  Kravitz suggested that the bridge construction be coordinated with the 
building project.  Kravitz recommended that the bridge be designed to not touch the earth and be connected 
with the existing bridge and proposed building. Wood suggested that discussion be held with Garlick to 
determine his willingness to pay for the bridge. Langlois made a motion to proceed with the permitting 
process (if needed) subject to how discussions proceed with Garlick. Bonczek seconded the motion and the 
vote in favor was unanimous. 
 
B. Update regarding Gonyea Park Project 
Kane explained that it came to their attention that there were some RIDEM issues regarding arsenic levels 
and an underground storage tank that had leaked on the Dunkin Donuts property. Kane stated that he wants a 
hold-harmless agreement with the owners of Dunkin Donuts.  Kane inquired about the need for an extension 
of the grant.  Wood stated that they have until next year (May 30, 2014) to complete the project and that the 
Burrillville DPW will be doing the bulk of the work. 
 
C.   Thai Time 
There was a discussion regarding capital sources to support the interest of the restaurant owner to purchase 
the real estate and undertake property improvements.  Kane confirmed that the BRA has the authority to 
make loans.  There was also some discussion regarding Ocean State Business Development Authority and 
the 504 program.  Mark Thompson made a motion to authorize Tim Kane to prepare a generic loan 
agreement.  The motion was seconded by David Fontaine and was unanimously approved.   
 
New Business To Be Discussed And Acted Upon: 
None 
 
 
Correspondence: 



 3 

None 
 
General Discussion:  
Langlois asked about the prognosis concerning RIDEM and the Mobil Station property.  Kravitz indicated 
that he had a discussion with RIDEM who indicated that a letter would be coming.   
 
Fontaine asked for an update regarding the Bank of America property.  Wood stated that the ATM has been 
pulled out and that several prospective buyers have viewed the site. Wood stated that he doesn’t know 
whether any offers have been made.   
 
Executive Session: 
Request for Executive Session from Michael C. Wood, Secretary, pursuant to Rhode Island Open Meeting 
Law [42-46-5 (a) (5)] for discussion and considerations related to the acquisition, sale or exchange of real 
property. 

a) Plat 175/Lot 019 (Mobil Station Property) 24 North Main Street 
b) Plat 175/Lot 060 (Apt. House, Pascoag Main) 73-75 Pascoag Main St. - Nardelli 
c) Plat 175/Lot 061 (Vacant Buildings) 85, 87-89 Pascoag Main St. – Nardelli 

 
Due to the lack of any new information to discuss, there was no Executive Session. 
 
Adjournment: 
On a motion by Thompson, seconded by Fontaine, the meeting was adjourned at 7:40 PM.  
 

 
Minutes approved by: 
 
 
__________________________________                                _________________________________ 
Michael C. Wood, Secretary     Date: 
 
 
    Date filed with Town Clerk:  ________________________ 
 


